
 

    
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

Canton Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency 
Thursday, January 14, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 

Library Community Center, Room F 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
ROLL CALL:  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT NOT RELATED TO AGENDA ITEM: 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 

1. File 11-15-1131; 110 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 36; Parcel 1010110; Zone B; 
Construction of a new gravity retaining wall; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o Denise 
Robidoux, applicants; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o WS Asset Management, Inc., 
owners 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 

 
1. File 12-15-1132; 133 East Hill Road; Assessor’s Map 23; Parcel 2490133; Zone R-3; Request for 

perimeter pond maintenance to removal existing cattails; Northeast Diving Services, applicant; 
Robert and Kathleen Hollis, owners 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 

1. Approve Minutes of December 10, 2015 
 

2. Applications Received After Agenda Posted 
 

3. Authorized Agent 
 

a) File 01-16-1133AA; 88 Simonds Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 4820088; Zone R-
1; Removal of trees within the Upland Review Area, northeast of the gravel parking lot; 
Town of Canton, applicant/owner 
 

4. Any Other Recent Enforcement Issues 
 

5. Freedom of Information (FOI) Class; February 3, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

6. POCD Implementation Review 
 

7. Staff Report 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  



- 1 -

Exhibit List for:

File 11-15-1131; 110 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 36; Parcel 1010110; Zone B; Construction of a
new gravity retaining wall; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o Denise Robidoux, applicants; W/S Peak
Canton Properties, LLC c/o WS Asset Management, Inc., owners

List as of January 7, 2016

Drawings:

1. Sheet 1: SP-1; Site Plan; 110 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by BL Companies; Prepared for The
Shoppes at Farmington Valley; Dated October 5, 2015

2. Sheet 2: DN-1; Detail Sheet; 110 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by BL Companies; Prepared for The
Shoppes at Farmington Valley; Dated October 5, 2015

3. Sheet 3: SP-1; Site Plan; 110 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by BL Companies; Prepared for The
Shoppes at Farmington Valley; Dated October 5, 2015; Revision Date of December 23, 2015

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton IWWA Permit Application for File 11-15-1131; 110 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map
36; Parcel 1010110; Zone B; Construction of a new gravity retaining wall; W/S Peak Canton
Properties, LLC c/o Denise Robidoux, applicants; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o WS Asset
Management, Inc., owners

2. Application transmittal sheet from BL Companies to Assistant Town Planner Emily Anyzeski; dated
November 13, 2015

3. Copy of payment, check #’s 88878 & 88877

4. Location map

5. Letter from BL Companies to Mr. David Shepard, Chairman of the IWWA, providing a summary of the
proposed work; received by the Land Use Office on November 16, 2015

6. List of abutting property owners

7. Map depicting abutting properties

8. Photographs of exiting retaining wall

9. Copy of Statewide Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Activity Reporting Form

10. 12/10/15 IWWA draft meeting minutes

11. Email from George Wallace to Neil Pade regarding staff comments; dated 12/8/15

12. Stormwater management plan for the Shoppes at Farmington Valley; dated 3/15/04

13. Flood zone map for 110 Albany Turnpike









































































Exhibit List

File 12-15-1132; 133 East Hill Road; Assessor’s Map 23; Parcel 2490133; Zone R-3; Request for
perimeter pond maintenance to removal existing cattails; Northeast Diving Services, applicant; Robert
and Kathleen Hollis, owners

List as of January 7, 2016

Correspondence

1. Town of Canton IWWA Permit Application for File 12-15-1132; 133 East Hill Road; Assessor’s Map
23; Parcel 2490133; Zone R-3; Request for perimeter pond maintenance to removal existing cattails;
Northeast Diving Services, applicant; Robert and Kathleen Hollis, owners

2. Copy of payment; check # 3143

3. Assessor’s property card for 133 East Mountain Road

4. CRCOG map of 133 East Mountain Road; dated December 9, 2015

5. Letter to the Town of Canton from Mr. and Mrs. Hollis, authorizing Northeast Diving Services to act on
their behalf regarding the permit process; dated November 13, 2015

6. List of abutters

7. Letter to the IWWA from Northeast Diving Services detailing the proposed work

8. Google Map of 121 East Mountain Road, which is adjacent to 133 East Mountain Road

9. Pictures of pond (5 pages total)



































DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting

Canton Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency
December 10, 2015 at 7:00 p.m.

Library/Community Center, Room F

CALL TO ORDER – The regular meeting of December 10, 2015 was called to order at 7:03 p.m.

PRESENT – David Shepard, Al Bombassei, Robert Bahre, Richard Vandebogart and David Sinish
ALSO PRESENT – Assistant Town Planner Emily Anyzeski and Recording Secretary Loren Kiefer

PUBLIC COMMENT NOT RELATED TO AGENDA ITEM – None

OLD BUSINESS – None

NEW BUSINESS

1. File 11-15-1130; 136 Barbourtown Road; Assessor’s Map 14; Parcel 1190136; Zone R-3;
Request for Jurisdictional Determination of Agricultural Use of Land/Non-Regulated Use for
Timber Harvesting; Lansford Perry, applicant; Canton Land Conservation Trust, Inc., owner –
Mr. Shepard reviewed the Jurisdictional Determination to the attendees in relation to Mr. Perry’s
request, especially regarding the ‘use of right’ for timber harvest. The applicant is not the owner of the
land; the application was completed and signed appropriately. Mr. Perry stated that many trees will
remain in comparison to the actual number of trees to be cut; this is a select group of trees being cut
on the 12.5 acres of land. Most of the land is upland. Current weather conditions continue to be good
and dry with no flow of the intermittent watercourse which is an intermittent stream with a hard rock
bottom. The proposed work will take no longer than two weeks if the weather conditions remain good.
The access way is a hard dirt road and a sturdy access way, which comes from Spaulding Rd. and an
old town road; there will be no tracking out of material onto the public road.

MOTION: D. Shepard moved to approve File 11-15-1130; 136 Barbourtown Road; Assessor’s Map
14; Parcel 1190136; Zone R-3; Request for Jurisdictional Determination of Agricultural Use of
Land/Non-Regulated Use for Timber Harvesting; Lansford Perry, applicant; Canton Land
Conservation Trust, Inc., as it is an accepted activity under section 4.1A and subject to the application
and approval by the agency. D. Sinish seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 5-0-0.

2. File 11-15-1131; 110 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 36; Parcel 1010110; Zone B;
Construction of a new gravity retaining wall; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o Denise
Robidoux, applicants; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o WS Asset Management, Inc.,
owners – Ms. Robidoux attended and spoke of the wall as in a state of crumbling, the wall directly
borders the Dish & Dat restaurant and the Ben & Jerry’s ice cream store. Mr. Emile Pierides of BL
Companies attended and spoke of the wall as needing a gravity wall to be constructed directly in front
of the current wall with drainage stone in between the walls (no concrete), and built as a flexible wall
system. The new retaining wall will not be anchored into the original wall. The existing wall will not be
taken out in order to avoid disturbing the current wetland review area and the building structures. The
new wall will keep the current wall up and keep it from failing. The only excavation needed is to build
an 18-inch deep trench with 9-inches of stone and the wall will be placed on top of the stone. In order
to lower the blocks, the crane will be situated from the patio of the Dish & Dat restaurant. The patio
has no current drainage and merely runs off the patio. The new trench will be 40-inches wide and
narrows as the rocks go up. The new wall is allowed to move as it is flexible, and does not have to be
below frost level. Each block is a few thousand pounds each, which are hollow blocks that get filled



with drainage stone. Mr. Bombassei and Mr. Bahre expressed concern about the geo-grid, and
questioned what will ensure that a new wall will not need to be replaced again in a few years. Mr.
Pierides and Ms. Robidoux said that there was a defect in some of the blocks in the original wall,
where the blocks are deteriorating similar to sand due to a bad batch built roughly 15 years ago. Mr.
Pierides said that the weight and gravity of the new all will keep the current wall from further
deterioration. There will be a drain at the bottom of the new wall and leaks out into the deep end with
a 4-inch pipe. The existing structure’s drainage is unclear as to where the storm water goes. There is
no drainage off the patio at this time, except for a pitched end to run off the wall. The current fence in
place will be taken out.

The targeted start-date will not take place till early spring, 2016. The anticipated timeframe of the
project will take a few weeks. Access to the length of the worksite is not confirmed as to how to
remove and replace the soil. The site plan notes are largely in general terms and not in specifics. The
work is out for bid with a contractor to be determined. A construction sequence is required.

MOTION: D. Shepard moved to receive 11-15-1131; 110 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 36;
Parcel 1010110; Zone B; Construction of a new gravity retaining wall; W/S Peak Canton Properties,
LLC c/o Denise Robidoux, applicants; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o WS Asset Management,
Inc., owners, and to continue with a site-walk to take place by commissioners on January 5, 2016. D.
Bahre seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 5-0-0.

OTHER BUSINESS

1. Approval of Minutes of July 9, 2015, September 10, 2015 and November 12, 2015 –

MOTION: Approval of Minutes
a) July 9, 2015 Minutes approved as amended. Seconded by A. Bombassei, which passed

unanimously 3-0-0. Mr. Shepard and Mr. Bahre abstained.
b) September 10, 2015 Minutes approved as amended. Seconded by A. Bombassei, which passed

unanimously 3-0-0. Mr. Sinish and Mr. Bahre abstained.
c) November 12, 2015 Minutes approved as amended. Seconded by Mr. Bahre, which passed

unanimously 4-0-0. Mr. Van de Bogart abstained.

2. Applications Received After Agenda Posted – None

3. Authorized Agent – None

4. Any Other Recent Enforcement Issues – None

5. Freedom of Information (FOI) Class; February 3, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. – Ms. Anyzeski mentioned a
reminder to all who are interested, to attend the meeting which will be held at the Town Hall.

6. Staff Report –

a. Dog Park updated by Ms. Anyzeski. The trail head parking was noted as being limited on Dowd
Avenue or Commerce Drive. Manure piles were discussed and will be further reviewed as State
of CT statutes may take precedence. Wetlands, waste, the location and lack of the trail-head
parking, and storage issues will be a factor going forward.

b. Ms. Anyzeski provided an update on 310 Albany Turnpike, they completed the excavation, and
getting ready for the winter months, including erosion control mats and removal of the silt fence.

ADJOURNMENT – MOTION: D. Shepard moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:19 p.m. A. Bombassei
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 5-0-0.

Respectfully Submitted,
Loren Kiefer, Recording Secretary



TOWN OF CANTON
FOUR MARKET STREET

P.O. BOX 168
COLLINSVILLE, CONNECTICUT 06022-0168

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

Phone 860-693-7837 Fax: 860-693-7840
rskinner@townofcantonct.org

www.townofcantonct.org

November 9, 2015

Mr. David Shepard,
Chairman
Canton Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency
7 Pond View Drive
Canton, CT 06019

RE: 2015 Annual Report for the 2014-2024 Town of Canton Plan of Conservation and
Development Implementation

Dear Mr. Shepard,

It has been over a year since the implementation of the 2014-2024 Plan of Conservation and Development
(POCD) began, and we are pleased to report positive efforts taken by both appointed and elected boards,
community volunteers, and town staff. We would like to personally thank and recognize the efforts made
by the Canton Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency in pursuing the implementation of the POCD.

This past July, the Board of Selectmen received the 2015 Annual Report of the 2014-2024 Plan of
Conservation and Development, which has been included for your review. This report documents the
progress that has been made over the past year and documented through routine meetings of the Plan
Implementation Committee (PIC), outreach to all boards and commissions, and input from Town Staff.

Along with the Annual Report, we have included an updated implementation table that reflects the current
status of measures specified for your Agency. While it is not expected every measure will be
accomplished, it is expected that each one will be given due consideration, and those that can be
accomplished will be pursued.

The PIC will be seeking further updates on your efforts to implement the POCD as part of your annual
work program, and requests that an update be provided to the Land Use Office by March 31, 2016. It is
recommended that POCD implementation be added to your agenda as a routine item for
discussion/action.

The PIC and Board of Selectmen thank you for your time and cooperation.

Sincerely,

Robert Skinner
Chief Administrative Officer



POCD - IWWA as Lead Agency

Priority Item Description / Last Note Status Yearly 
Progress

Lead 
Agency Primary Partners

O NR9 Continue to review permits for disturbances in upland review areas of watercourses to 
protect the natural resource value of the watercourse.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: Continues to be implemented as standard operating procedure.

n/a n/a IWWA CC, Town 

23-Jun-2015 Page 1 of 1POCD - IWWA as Lead Agency



POCD - IWWA as Partner Agency

Priority Item Description / Last Note Status Yearly 
Progress

Lead 
Agency Primary Partners

A NR11 Develop fundamental updated storm water management (SWM) regulations for zoning and 
subdivision.  Focus on treatment and volume of discharge in addition to peak discharge.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: Zoning Reg rewrite includes first Stormwater Management Regulations.  It is 
expected that revisions will be necessary to comply with forthcoming MS4 General Permit 
issuance by CTDEEP.

P Yes PZC IWWA, Town, FRWC, DEEP

A NR12 Incorporate Low Impact Development (LID) techniques into SWM regulations for use where 
practical:
   a. Rain gardens, tree boxes, & depressed vegetated medians.
   b. Porous pavement.
   c. Gravel “wetlands” and wet ponds.
   d. Vegetated swales and buffers.
   e. Other best management practice (BMP) bioretention measures.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: Reference LID standards called out in new Zoning Regs.  Some changes 
expected with new MS4 GP from CTDEEP.

P Yes PZC IWWA, Town, FRWC, DEEP

A NR15 Incorporate BMPs for steep slope management and design into regulations and standards.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: Regulations to this effect strengthened in Zoning Reg rewrite.  Will be 
reviewed during Subdivision Reg rewrite.

P Yes PZC IWWA, CC, Town

A ED68 For all but the most basic applications, recommend a joint preliminary project review 
meeting between the applicant and staff to identify requirments and potential areas of 
concern.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
15-Apr-2015: Land Use staff are presently informally including this strategy in meetings with 
PD & DPW;  formal project review meetings have not been established.

D Yes Town PZC, IWWA

23-Jun-2015 Page 1 of 5POCD - IWWA as Partner Agency



Priority Item Description / Last Note Status Yearly 
Progress

Lead 
Agency Primary Partners

B NR1 Develop and maintain a comprehensive Natural Resources Inventory (NRI).
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: Strategies for continuing to refine and expand past work to create a more 
comprehensive NRI was discussed with CC on 2/18/2015; no new initiatives undertaken at 
that time.

H No CC IWWA, Town, BOS, FRWC

B NR7 Support priority recommendations of the Upper Mill Pond Master Plan identified on page 24 
of the 'Strategic Component'.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
14-Jun-2015: Upper Mill Pond Master Plan recommendations to be considered individually 
as topics arise.  Overall support varies for the different recommendatios.

H No BOS CC, PRC, PMBC, Town, IWWA

B NR20 Develop and enforce regulations on clear cutting in such core forest areas, limited to those 
activities carried out by a forester certified by the DEEP.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
20-Jun-2015: No action in FY 2014-2015.

NI n/a PZC CC, IWWA, Town

B NR22 Use public education programs (promote and extend DEEP education efforts) regarding:
   a. Use of pesticides and herbicides – damage to environment, organic options, avoid 
excessive use.
   b. Invasive species.
   c. Proper tree and forest management
   d. Dumping (including leaves) into storm drainage systems and water-courses
   e. Vehicle washing or maintenance where associated runoff waters may reach 
watercourses untreated.
   f. Other discharges to or diversions from watercourses, which are (or may be) harmful to 
those waters.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: New initiatives identified and discussed between PIC and CC on 2/18/2015.

NI n/a CC IWWA, Town, BOE

23-Jun-2015 Page 2 of 5POCD - IWWA as Partner Agency



Priority Item Description / Last Note Status Yearly 
Progress

Lead 
Agency Primary Partners

B ED21 Consider allowing for increases in impervious and building coverage in areas identified as 
appropriate for mixed use and commercial development (with appropriate environmental 
and aesthetic safeguards).
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
11-Apr-2015: Incorporated in 2014 Zoning Reg rewrite in limited form.  Being developed 
further in Design Regulation project.

P Yes PZC IWWA, BOS

B F23 Recapture the riverfront presently occupied by the DPW Garage to increase public access 
and recreation.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
10-Jun-2015: Garage referendum failed; WPCA expansion plans conflict with this measure.

H No BOS BOF, PRC, PMBC, PZC, IWWA, 
WPCA, Town, FRWC, RES

C NR4 Perform a verification study of identified potential vernal pools.  
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
20-Jun-2015: No action in FY 2014-2015.

NI n/a CC IWWA, Town, FRWC

C NR5 Once vernal pools are verified and their ecologic functions are categorized, consider new 
regulations (or review procedures) as necessary to protect vernal pools found to be of 
significant ecological value.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
20-Jun-2015: No action in FY 2014-2015.

NI n/a CC IWWA, PZC, Town

C NR14 Investigate ways to (with reasonable burden to the property owner) encourage/ ensure 
adequate maintenance of installed stormwater management facilities.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: General provision included in Zoning Reg rewrite.

P Yes PZC IWWA, Town, FRWC, DEEP

G CC8 Keep the preservation of rural character as a priority in the acquisition of open space.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: No open space acquisition sought in 2014 - 2015.

n/a n/a CC PZC, IWWA, Town, BOS, BOF, 
CLCT

23-Jun-2015 Page 3 of 5POCD - IWWA as Partner Agency



Priority Item Description / Last Note Status Yearly 
Progress

Lead 
Agency Primary Partners

G CC9 Preserve farmland soils and working farms.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: New initiatives identified and discussed between PIC and CC on 2/18/2015.

n/a Yes CC PZC, IWWA, Town, BOS, BOF, 
CLCT

G NR10 Support a proper balance and appropriate accommodation of the various natural resource 
values of the watercourses when such values may be in conflict.  (i.e. – the provision of fish 
ladders through hydro-electric power generation.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
21-Jun-2015: RFPs issued for redevelopment of hydropower have included these 
environmental considerations as requirements.

n/a Yes BOS IWWA, PZC, CC, PMBC, Town

G ED18 Consider the redevelopment of the Collins Company site, in a manner which has a good 
balance of commercial to residential use, to be an incontrovertible priority to the Town 
economically. Take appropriate actions necessary to support its redevelopment. 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
20-Jun-2015: Current development team have discussed possible tweaks to their approach 
to residential portion of future development with PZC.

n/a n/a BOS EDA, PZC, IWWA, CoC, MST

G ED37 Promote infill and redevelopment of existing sites to expand the tax base within existing 
developed areas while maintaining context sensitivity of the surrounding built environment 
and local character.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
11-Apr-2015: Relevant measures being included in the Design Regulation project.

n/a Yes PZC EDA, IWWA, CoC, MST

O NR2 Continue efforts to protect and preserve priority natural resources.  (See Chapter 3.)
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: Expectations and potential on-going, as needed measures identified and 
discussed between PIC and CC on 2/18/2015; no new initiatives were undertaken.

n/a n/a CC IWWA, Town, PZC

23-Jun-2015 Page 4 of 5POCD - IWWA as Partner Agency



Priority Item Description / Last Note Status Yearly 
Progress

Lead 
Agency Primary Partners

O NR13 When significant modifications occur on existing sites, require that stormwater 
management controls be updated to reflect current standards and best management 
practices (BMPs) to practical extents.
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
08-Apr-2015: Required by new Zoning Regs (indluding for significant residential 
development).  Some changes expected with new MS4 GP from CTDEEP.

n/a Yes PZC IWWA, Town

23-Jun-2015 Page 5 of 5POCD - IWWA as Partner Agency


